





# IV Event of 2016 Lithuanian Rally Championship IV Event of 2016 Latvian Rally Championship

# "Rally Žemaitija - 2016"

16 -18 of June, 2016

# SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS

*IMPORTANT!* In the case of difference of interpretation as regards the terms used in various translations of supplementary regulations only the Lithuanian text will be considered authentic.







# TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION	3
II. ORGANIZATION	3
2.1 CLASSIFICATIONS IN THE RALLY	3
2.2 COMPETITION STATUS	3
2.3 ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFORMATION OF THE ORGANIZER	4
2.4 ORGANIZING COMMITTEE	4
2.5 STEWARDS OF THE MEETING	4
2.6 OBSERVERS AND DELEGATES	4
2.7 OFFICIALS OF THE RALLY	4
2.8 RALLY HEADQUARTERS AND OFFICIAL NOTICE BOARD	5
III. PROGRAM	5
IV. ENTRIES	
V. INSURANCE	9
VI. ADVERTISING AND VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS	9
VII. TIRES	10
VIII. FUEL	10
IX. RECONNAISSANCE	10
X. ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKING	11
XI. SCRUTINEERING, SEALINGS AND MARKINGS	11
XII. OTHER PROCEDURES	12
XIII. IDENTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIALS	15
XIV. PRIZES, CUPS	15
XV. SCRUTINEERING FOLLOWING RALLY FINISH	16
XVI. PENALTIES	16
XVII. USEFUL INFORMATION	16

Page 2/17







# **1.1 DEFINITION**

The IV event of 2016 Lithuanian Rally Championship (abr. Lithuanian RC) and the IV event of Latvian Rally Championship (abr. Latvian RC) "Rally Žemaitija - 2016" will be organized by Kelme Automobile Sports Club. The rally will be run in compliance with:

- FIA International Sporting Code (abr. FIA Code);
- Lithuanian Automobile Sports Code (abr. LASC);
- Lithuanian Automobile Sports Competition's Organization and Execution Rules;
- Rules of the Lithuanian Rally Championship 2016 (abr. T-2016);
- Regulations of the Lithuanian Rally Championship 2016;
- Regulations of the Latvian Rally Championship 2016;
- The present Supplementary Regulations.

The modifications, corrections and changes of these Supplementary Regulations will be announced only in numbered and dated Bulletins (issued by the Organizer or Stewards). Additional information announced in Rally Guide which published <u>www.rallyzemaitija.lt</u>, <u>www.lasf.lt</u> and <u>www.autorally.lv</u> from 04-04-2016 (Monday), 15:00.

Rules and Regulations of Lithuanian Rally Championship 2016 are published <u>www.lasf.lt</u>. Regulations of Latvian Rally Championship 2016 are published <u>www.laf.lv</u>.

## **1.2 GENERAL INFORMATION**

Total distance of the rally course:	313,60 km
Number of stages:	9
Number of stages to be raced twice:	2 (partitially)
Total distance of special stages:	121,80 km
Number of legs:	2
Number of sections:	5
Surface:	gravel - 100%

Precise total distance, detailed route and itinerary will be specified in the Road Book.

# **II. ORGANIZATION**

### 2.1 CLASSIFICATIONS IN THE RALLY:

- Classifications which are mentioned in Lithuanian RC Regulations, art 5.1;

- Classifications which are mentioned in Latvian RC Regulations, art. 1.5-1.6;

- 2WD and AWD classifications of "Rally Žemaitija - 2016".

### **2.2 COMPETITION STATUS**

The rally has been entered into the LASF and LAF sports calendars of 2016 as the fourth event of Lithuanian Rally Championship 2016 and as the fourth event of Latvian Rally Championship 2016. Registration No.VOS 2016/...

Page 3/17







## 2.3 ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFORMATION OF THE ORGANIZER:

The name: Kelmė Automobile Sports Club Address: Statybininkų str. 17. Kelmė Contacts: mobil phone: +370 686 36522; +370 682 27744 e-mail: <u>info@kelmesask.lt</u>, fax + 370 427 52737

## 2.4 ORGANIZING COMMITTEE

Chairman: Mr. T. Savickas – President of Kelme ASC

Members: Mr. V. Andrulis – Kelmė district mayor

Mr. R.Karčiauskas – Head of Kražiai municipality

Mr. L. Mačernius – Head of Užventis municipality

Mr. A. Sakalauskas – Head of Pakražantis municipality

- Mr. S. Michailovas Chief specialist of Kelme municipality sports and culture department
- Mr. A. Kazlauskas The President of N40 men's auto Club

Ms. I. Savickienė - Director of company "Accounting Services Office"

Mr. V. Pupius – Director of company "Girilis"

Mr. E. Vašteris - The member of Kelmė ASC

Mr. R. Dzvankauskas - The fermer of Kukečiai

## 2.5 STEWARDS OF THE MEETING

Chairman Stewards:	Donatas Liesis Reinis Poznaks Edvinas Vašteris	Lithuania Latvia Lithuania	+370 614 81141 +371 263 50574 +370 612 50791
2.6 OBSERVERS AND DELEGATES			
LASF observer	Reinis Poznaks	Latvia	+371 263 50574
LAF technical delegate	Gints Freimanis	Latvia	+371 292 77998
2.7 OFFICIALS OF THE RALLY:			
Clerk of the Course	Tomas Savickas	Lithuania	+370 686 36522
Deputy Clerk of the Course/Rally director	Ingrida Savickienė	Lithuania	+370 682 27744
Chief Secretary	Rasa Jakienė	Lithuania	+370 686 85146
Latvian RC secretary	Irena Krastina	Latvia	+371 292 67519
Secretary of Stewards	Reneta Breivienė	Lithuania	+370 614 74369
Chief Scrutineer	Saulius Stanaitis	Lithuania	+370 687 31023
Competitors' relations officer	Remigijus Bilevičius	Lithuania	+370 671 62265
Course and safety chief officer	Mindaugas Račkauskas	Lithuania	+370 698 39401
Deputy Course and safety manager	Arūnas Lapinskas	Lithuania	$+370\ 612\ 07151$
Chief doctor	Evaldas Torrau	Lithuania	+370 698 32313
Chief timekeeper	Evaldas Vilimaitis	Lithuania	$+370\ 620\ 73621$
Press centre manager	Saulenis Pociūnas	Lithuania	+370 612 86613
GPS system officer	B.P.	Lithuania	+370

Page 4/17







.

# 2.8 RALLY HEADQUARTERS AND OFFICIAL NOTICE BOARD:

Place: The Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė

Date: 16-06-2016 (Thursday) 17-06-2016 (Friday) 18-06-2016 (Saturday) elmė 55° 37' 55.0", 22° 56' 9.0" Time: 19:00 till 24:00 Time: 8:00 till 24:00 Time: 0:00 till 01:00 and 8:00 till 21:30

Contacts: +370 686 36522 Rally Control Center; +370 686 85146 Secretariat

# **III. PROGRAM**

Date: 16-05-20	<b>IENTARY REGULATIONS</b> 016 (Monday) Illyzemaitija.lt, www.lasf.lt , y		Time: 15:00
<b>3.2 ENTRIES</b>			
Entries open: fr Entries close: (	NAL ENTRIES (Appendix 5) from 16-05-2016 (Monday) 03-06-2016 (Friday) he increased starting fee) close	: 07-06-2016 (Tuesday)	Time: 15:00 Time: 17:00 Time: 17:00
<b>Presented: e-mail:</b> <u>info@kelmesask.lt</u> <u>Note:</u> participants, who submit their entry forms after 03-06-2016 (Friday) 17:00, will not be included into preliminary start order and participants list, published in the media.			
Entries open: fr Entries close: 1	ENTRIES (Appendix 6) from 16-05-2016 (Monday) 17-06-2016 (Friday) nail: <u>info@kelmesask.lt</u> and/	or Rally HQ till 18:00, 17-06-2016	Time: 15:00 Time: 18:00
Place: www.ra	CATION OF THE LIST OF D <u>allyzemaitija.lt</u> , <u>www.lasf.lt</u> , <u>v</u> 0-05-2016 (Friday), regularly u	www.autorally.lv	Time: 15:00
3.3 PUBLICATION OF PRELIMINARY START ORDERPlace:www.rallyzemaitija.lt, www.lasf.ltPlace:08-06-2016 (Wednesday)Time:15:00			
3.4 ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKS, HAND - OUT OF ROAD BOOKS AND GPS EQUIPMENTPlace:Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, KelmėDate:16-06-2016 (Thursday)Time: 19:00 till 21:00			
3.5 RECONN	AISSANCE:		
	6-06-2016 (Thursday) 7-06-2016 (Friday)	Test stage Tim	me: 20:00 till 24:00 me: 8:00 till 9:30 me: 8:00 till 17:30

Reconnaisance shedule published in Appendix 2 of this Supplementary Regulations

Page 5/17







# 3.6 SCRUTINEERING AND SEALING OF TURBINES

Place: Date: Date:	Company "Girilis", Vytauto Didžiojo str. 128, Kelmė 17-06-2016 (Friday) <i>For Test stage participating crews</i> 17-06-2016 (Friday) <i>For Test stage non-participating crews</i> :	Time: 7:30 till 9:30 Time:11:30 till 17:30
<b>3.7 TES</b> Place: Date:	<b>F STAGE ( SHAKEDOWN )</b> Kolainiai, Kelmė district 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 10:00 till 12:30
	<b>S PARKING IN THE PRE-START AREA</b> ongside Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 17:00 till 19:00
<b>3.9 BRIE</b> Place: Date:	EFING FOR "O" CREWS Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 18:00
<b>3.10 FIR</b> Place: Date:	ST STEWARDS' MEETING Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 18:30
<b>3.11 PUB</b> Place: Date:	BLICATION OF START ORDER OF THE 1st RALLY DAY Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 19:15
<b>3.12 OPI</b> Place: Date:	ENING CEREMONY Square alongside Kelmė Little Theatre, Laisvės gynėjų square 17-06-2016 (Friday)	1, Kelmė Time: 19:30
<b>3.13 ST</b> Place: Date:	ART OF THE RALLY Square alongside Kelmė Little Theatre, Laisvės gynėjų square 17-06-2016 (Friday)	1, Kelmė Time: 20:00
<b>3.14 TIN</b> Place: Data:	IE OFF, REGROUPING AFTER FIRST SECTION Kražiai Ethnography Museum, Kolegijos str. 5, Kražiai 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 21:45 till 22:45
<b>3.15 FIN</b> Place: Date:	ISH OF THE 1st RALLY DAY Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 23:40
	BLICATION OF THE 1st RALLY DAY RESULTS AND THE	START ORDER FOR 2nd
RALLY Place: Date:	DAY: Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė 18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 9:30

Page 6/17







3.17 STA	RT OF THE 2nd RALLY DAY	
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	
Place:	TC 2D, Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė	Time: 10:15
3.18 FIN	ISH OF THE RALLY:	
Place:	Square alongside Kelmė Little Theatre, Laisvės gynėjų square 1, I	Kelmė
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 18:45
3.19 SCF	RUTINEERING FOLLOWING RALLY FINISH	
Place:	Company "Girilis", Vytauto Didžiojo str. 128, Kelmė	
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: just after finish
3.20 POS	T-RALLY PRESS CONFERENCE	
Place:	Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė	
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 20:15
3.21 RE	SULTS	
3.21.1 AI	NOUNCEMENT OF PROVISIONAL RESULTS	
Place:	Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė	
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 20:00
3.21.2 AI	NNOUNCEMENT OF FINAL RESULTS	
Place:	Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, Kelmė	
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 20:40
	IZE AWARDING CEREMONY:	
Place:	Square alongside Kelmė Little Theatre, Laisvės gynėjų square 1, I	
Date:	18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 21:00
3.23 SEI	RVICE	
3.23.1 S	ERVICE PARK B/C/D/E :	
Place:	Vytauto Didžiojo str. from L.Giros str. to Laisvės gynėjų sqare, Ke	
_	<i>from</i> 55° 37' 55.87", 22° 56' 20.2" <i>to</i> 55° 37' 50.89", 22° 55' 59.2"	
Date:	<i>from</i> 17-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 17:00
	<i>till</i> 18-06-2016 (Saturday)	Time: 21:00
	ERVICE ZONE A	
Place:		5' 46.65", 22° 40' 57.9"
Date:	17-06-2016 (Friday) Ti	me: 19:00 till 23:30

# IV. ENTRIES

4.1 Entries open: from 16-05-2016 (Monday)	Time: 15:00
Entries close: 03-06-2016 (Friday)	Time: 17:00
Entries (with the increased starting fee) close: 07-06-2016 (Tuesday)	Time: 17:00

Page 7/17







**4.2** All drivers (1st and 2nd drivers may take part in the rally, presented for Organizer Entry Form

and Entry fee payment, holding valid driving licenses and the competitor's licenses issued by LASF or parental ASN, valid in this event. All participants of Lithuanian Rally Championship must submit "Lithuanian Rally Championship Entry Form" and pay Lithuanian RC participation fee. Persons younger 18 years old make take part in the rally only by decision of LASF Rally Committee.

**4.3** Correctly and fully filled electronic entry form in <u>www.rallyzemaitija.lt</u>, <u>www.lasf.lt</u>, <u>www.lasf.lt</u>, <u>www.autorally.lv</u> must be sent to the Organizer till the time limits specified in art. 4.1 of these Supplementary Regulations. Entry form is considered to be confirmed only when a confirmation from the Organizer is obtained and payed entry fee. Data about the co-driver may be submitted during administrative checking.

4.3.1 Correctly and fully filled and **signed** original entry form must be submitted during administrative checking.

4.3.2 Crews wishing more convenient administrative checking and scrutineering times must indicate this in the electronic entry form and submit to the Organizer till 03-06-2016 (Friday) 17:00.

**4.4** Maximum number of the participants - 70.

## 4.5 Eligible vehicles.

4.5.1 Eligible vehicles in Lithuanian RC (classifications, groups, classes):

LRC1, LRC2, LRC3, LRC4, LRC5, LRC Junior (Regulations of Lithuanian RC, art.3.1)

4.5.2 Eligible vehicles in Latvian RC (classifications, groups, classes):

LRC1, LRC2, LRC3, RK1, RK2, RK Historic, LRC Junior (Regulations of Latvian RC, art.1.5-1.6)

<u>4.5.3 Participate in "Rally Žemaitija - 2016" classifications</u> are allowed all of the above mentioned cars, which will classified into groups 2WD or AWD. Sportsmen of foreign countries may take part in the rally with cars, which are in conformity to FIA homologation or national technical requirements.

### 4.6 Entry fees :

Entry fee	Till 03-06-2016 17:00	After 03-06-2016 17:00
For Lithuanian RC 1 and 2 classifications	500 Eur	750 Eur
For Lithuanian RC 3 and 4 classifications	400 Eur	600 Eur
For Lithuanian RC 5 classification	300 Eur	450 Eur
For Latvian RC participants (all classifications)	450 Eur	675 Eur
<b>Only</b> rally "Žemaitija - 2016" 2 WD participants	300 Eur	450 Eur
<b>Only</b> rally "Žemaitija - 2016" AWD participants	400 Eur	600 Eur
Lithuanian RC Team fee	70 Eur	70 Eur
Latvian RC Team fee	0 Eur	0 Eur







### 4.7 The entry fee must be paid as follows:

Beneficiary :
Code:
Bank:
SWIFT/BIC:
Beneficiary's account (IBAN):
Payment for:

<u>Kelmės ASK</u> <u>300029866</u> <u>AB "Šiaulių bankas"</u> <u>CBSBLT26</u> <u>LT087180200000700568</u> <u>"Rally Žemaitija - 2016</u>" entry fee (**write in the name of the team or/and names of the participant(s)**).

## 4.8 Partial refunding of the entry fee.

If the crew, that has paid the entry fee, fails to appear in the event due to a serious reason, such crew may be refunded 50 percent of their entry fee paid. In case the Rally is cancelled due to *Force majeure*, participants will be refunded 50 percent of their entry fee paid. If the entry form is rejected – full entry fee is refunded.

**4.9** "0" cars (course cars) crews must pay **200,00** Eur deposit for the Organizer till 17:00, 07-06-2016 (Tuesday), which will be returned if the crew completes all of its functions as "0" crew, appointed by Organizer, according to official report of the Clerk of the Course.

### 4.10 Prohibited Entry Zones.

4.10.1 All the first and second drivers of Lithuanian RC 2016 and Latvian RC 2016, and all sportsmen intending or only having intentions to take part in the "Rally Žemaitija - 2016" shall be strictly prohibited – entering to the roads marked in the prohibited Entry Zones map from 16-05-2016 (Monday) 15:00 till 16-06-2016 (Thursday) 20:00 in zone A, and respectively in the zones B,C,D till 17-06-2016 (Friday) 8:00.Those, who will be registered as violators by the officials appointed by LASF or the rally Organizer, will not be allowed to take part in the rally and their national federation will be informed about it. *The map of the restricted roads (Appendix 7) will be announced on the web pages\_www.lasf.lt, www.rallyzemaitija.lt, www.autorally.lv, starting from 16-05-2016 Monday), 15:00.* 

4.10.2 Persons named in clause 4.10.1, willing to move/cross the roads marked as prohibited for entry, must communicate their intentions in writing in advance to the LASF and the Organizer and obtain permission from the Organizer.

# **V. INSURANCE**

**5.1** Every participant must hold valid User/driver civil liability insurance or the "green card" (both for the reconnaissance car and for the race car).

**5.2** The Organizer guaranties civil liability insurance towards third party on special stages from start as for as finish either retirement or expulsion out of rally. Participants are not third parties to each other.

# VI. ADVERTISING AND VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS

**6.1** The positioning of driver's names, surnames, competition numbers and advertising material provided by LASF or the Organizer is presented in Appendix 1 of Lithuanian Rally Championship 2016 Regulations and in Appendix 4 of these Supplementary Regulations. This advertising is mandatory.

Page 9/17







# VII. TIRES

**7.1** During reconnaissance participants may use only certified, driving on public roads during the summer season tires, which are in conformity with Lithuanian Rules of Road traffic law.

# Use of tires "M+S" prohibited.

**7.2** During rally allowed use only racing tires for gravel roads.

7.3 All the participants are allowed to change tyres in Service zone A and in Service parks B/C/D/E.

# VIII. FUEL

**8.1.** Refuelling is allowed only in the refuelling zones (clause 58.1.1. of T-2016).

**8.2.** All cars using E85 fuel – bioethanol, must be marked by special stickers (min. measurements: 160x120 mm), with note E85 must be written on blue background. Height of the letter and the digits is: 80 mm, symbol thickness: 14 mm. Stickers must be stuck on car bodywork, above rear wheel arches – no further than 200 mm from top of the arch on both sides of the car (Appendix 11).

Without this marking is prohibited start in the Rally.

# IX. RECONNAISSANCE

**9.1** Reconnaissance is mandatory for every crew. Only crews, participating in Shakedown, may recognise with this stage.

**9.2** Any violations of the crews during reconnaissance will be recorded by GPS (Global Positioning System) devices and the Organizer authorized officials, who shall register violations in the Crew's cards. Organizer's official bulletin with list of authorized persons will be published on the official notice board. **9.3.** The crew, that is not using this equipment during reconnaissance, has not installed the equipment or has dismantled it during the race, is penalized 1000 Eur fine and must install the equipment immediately. If an infringement is repeated, the crew is penalized 300 Eur fine for every similar case. The device must be in a easily visible place of the car during the reconnaissance, that Marshals or other Officials could identify it easily.

**9.4** Reconnaissance in Test stage (Shakedown) allowed 17-06-2016 (Friday) from 8:00 till 9:30, in SS1/2 and SS3 allowed 16-06-2016 (Thursday) from 20:00 till 24:00. Reconnaissance in all other stages of the rally allowed 17-06-2016 (Friday) from 8:00 till 17:30. **During reconnaissance must be followed all provisions specified in Schedule (Appendix 2).** 

All special stage sare *not allowed to be driven more than 2 times*. SS 1/2 and SS 4, SS 5 and SS 7 are partitially repetitive, but they are not identical, and shall be counted as different stages. The number of passes will monitor the GPS tracking system.

**9.5** The crews must drive in such a way that no danger or inconvenience is caused to the people residing close to the Rally course during the reconnaissance. Driving in the opposite direction is strictly prohibited in the special stages. *Please note:* Speed limit in Lithuanian Republic on unpaved roads in non-residential areas – 70 km/h. The Organizer's appointed Officials, GPS Tracking Operators and the police will check the speed during the reconnaissance. The speed may be reduced by respective road signs, marked in the Road Book. It is prohibited to use anti-radars and radar detectors.

Page 10/17







**9.6** All reconnaissance infringements recorded by the devices and by presented reports of police or fact marshals will be punished following the Lithuanian Automobile Sport Code, article 152. The penalties are stated in Appendix No.8 (Table of Penalties). National federations will be given respective notice. <u>NOTE:</u> Speeding less than 10 km/h during the reconnaissance is not considered as infringement and is not penalizable.

**9.7 Reconnaissance vehicles**. Reconnaissance may be performed only by registered recce vehicles, which meet the requirements of "T-2016" art. 25.1. On receipt of the Road Book, the crew must indicate his recce vehicles, which will be used for reconnaissance, as well as all service and representative vehicles.

9.8 The Participants must deliver the reconnaissance card to the Organizer's secretariat till 18:15,

17-06-2016 (Friday). In case of failure to meet this requirement, the Participants will be penalized according to art.152 of the LASC (Appendix 8).

**9.9.** All the fines appointed during administrative checking, scrutineering and during reconnaissance must be paid before the first meeting of the Stewards.

# X. ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKING

## **10.1 Administrative checking**

Place:Kelmė Culture Centre, Vytauto Didžiojo str. 73, KelmėDate:16-06-2016 (Thursday)

Time: 19:00 till 21:00

10.1.1 Entrant (representative) or one of the members of crew must personally arrive to administrative checking and must present the following valid documents:

- Original Entry Form;
- Entrant's license;
- Competitor's licenses;
- Driving licenses (except younger 18 years old);
- Medical certificates of aptitude (FIA Sports Code, Appendix "L" art. 1.8);
- Foreign competitors permission from an ASN to take part in the rally;
- Entry fee payment evidence;
- "Green card"/ valid User/driver civil liability insurance for reconnaissance car.

# XI. SCRUTINEERING, SEALING AND MARKING

### **11.1 Pre-start scrutineering**

Place: Company "Girilis", Vytauto Didžiojo str. 128, Kelmė

Date: 17-06-2016 (Friday) For Test stage participating crews Time

Date: 17-06-2016 (Friday) For Test stage non-participating crews:

Time: 7:30 till 9:30 Time: 11:30 till 17:30

**11.2** During the pre-start scrutineering the participants or members of team must present the following valid documents:

- "Green card"/ valid User/driver civil liability insurance;
- Vehicle registration document;
- Technical inspection evidence document;

Page 11/17







- Rally car certificate (passport) issued by the LASF or the ASN of other country.

- Declaration of safety equipments (Appendix 9).

- Declaration of used fuel (Appendix 10)

- For cars of FIA groups "N", "A" and "R", WRC, Super 1600 and Super 2000 – FIA homologation form and all appendixes.

**11.3** The crew must affix competition numbers and rally mandatory advertising on their cars before scrutineering. Competition numbers and rally mandatory advertising is issued during Road books issuance.

**11.4** Inspection of driver's helmets and driver's equipment will be performed by Officials, marked identifying signs , during the pre-start scrutineering also in the Service parks and in closed parks or in equivalent status zones.

11.5 FHR (Frontal Head Restraint, former: HANS) devices are mandatory for all crews.

<u>NOTE:</u> Exact arrival schedule with appointment individual arrival times to administrative checking and pre-start scrutineering will be published together with the start order 08-06-2016 (Wednesday), 15:00 <u>www.rallyzemaitija.lt</u>, <u>www.lasf.lt</u>, <u>www.autorally.lv</u>.

# **XII. OTHER PROCEDURES**

**12.1** Official time of the Rally will be the local time as per Lithuanian radio signals.

**12.2** Start of the Rally:

Date: 17-06-2016 (Friday)

Time: 20:00

Place: Square alongside Kelmė Little Theatre, Laisvės gynėjų square 1, Kelmė

**12.3** Official start list of the first rally day will be announced on the Official Notice board and TC0. Official start time of the second rally day will be announced on the Official Notice board and TC 2D.

**12.4** The time interval between crews will be 2 minutes during the first rally day and will be 1 minute interval during the second rally day.

**12.5 GPS safety and control system.** In special stages all of the crews security will be ensured safety and control GPS units.

<u>12.5.1 The procedure of issue and use of safety and tracking equipment</u>. In pursuance to maintain safety, receive notifications of risk and following to Regulations of the Rally, during the road books issuing for every competitor will be issued EDGE/3G/GPS and satellite communication GPRS/GSM/GPS equipment that will have to be used by every competitor during the reconnaissance and during the Rally. Every competitor is responsible financially for the equipment and *must pay 200 Eur deposit fee*.

12.5.2 The procedure of issuing and returning of safety and tracking equipment.

Safety and tracking equipment is issued during the road books issuance. Return of the equipment and deposit return after Rally finish – 18-06-2016 (Saturday), till 20:30. If a disordered, dysfunctional equipment is returned or if it has been failed to return till the term, 200 Eur deposit fee is not returned.

12.5.3 The use of safety and tracking equipment.

The competitors are responsible for installing of equipment by themselves. The same device is used during both: the reconnaissance and the event. During the reconnaissance, the device has to be installed in visible place that Marshals and other Officials could identify it. The device has to be installed inside the car before Rally start, or if the crew takes part in theTest stage – before it start. Safety and tracking equipment and information sticker has to be installed inside rally car according to scheme specified in Appendix 12.







### 12.5.4 Safety and tracking equipment principles.

Safety and tracking equipment will be connected with monitoring station, which will store all the transferring data. All data will be also stored into the safety and tracking equipment. The device has autonomous power supply, which will maintain the functioning of the equipment during the entire event. The device has installed "SOS" and "OK" buttons. Every device has its unique serial number, which will be assigned to every crew. Geographical position of every crew will be monitored during reconnaissance and during the Rally at Rally Headquarters. **Attention!** The device during its operating time can spread specific radiomagnetic interferences what is typical for GSM connections. We kindly recommend putting other devices that can be sensitive for this Organizer's issued equipment in maximum distance from the installed Organizer's equipment.

## 12.5.5 Principles of sending "SOS" and "OK" signals.

Pressing "SOS" button it is allowed, when the crew has suffered an accident and an immediate help is required. In this case, the *Rally HQ also has to be informed by phone number, which will be written on informational Safety sticker*. Pressing "OK" button it is allowed, when the crew stopped and haven't started to move for more than 30 seconds after suffering an accident or mechanical problems in the SS during the Rally and immediate help is not needed (also when the crew is trying to get back on the road and continue the Rally). Attention! After stopping in SS, the device system automatically sends "SOS" signal and the crew has 30 seconds to deactivate the system by sending signal "OK", if the immediate help is not needed. The crew has to have mobile phone, switched on or to switch it on in 60 seconds after an accident, so Rally safety and Rally monitoring centre could contact with them. For the infringements, regarding to sending order of "SOS" and "OK" signals, the crew is fined according to art.152 of the LASC.

12.5.6 <u>All attempts of a crew to inhibit or influence GPS Safety and tracking equipment signals or</u> operation during reconnaissance and/or race, will be reported to the Stewards, which will appoint penalties or will decide on exclusion of the crew from the Rally.

**12.6** Time cards will be issued in: TC 0, TC 2B, TC 2D, TC5B and TC 7B. Time cards will be assembled in: TC 2A, TC 2C, TC 5A, TC 7A and TC 9A.

**12.7** Early check-in without time penalty is allowed in: TC1C, TC2A, TC2C, TC5A, TC 7A and TC 9A.

**12.8** Retired crews **must inform the Rally Headquarters** by phone number, indicated on GPS sticker or Clerk of the Course by ph. +370 686 36522 or Competitors relation's Officer by ph. +370 671 62265 about the reasons as well as place and time of their retirement. The retired crew must also return the time card at the closest control post or to the stage opening Marshals, and remove the race numbers form the car. Failing to inform about the retirement will inflict 60 Eur penalty.

**12.9** In case of an accident where the crew members or a spectator suffered physical damage/injury, the member of the crew must immediately inform the following cars by showing "SOS" sign (art. 40.2 of T-2016) and inform Rally Headquarters by phone number, indicated on GPS sticker or Clerk of the Course by ph. +370 686 36522 or Competitors relation's Officer by ph. +370 671 62265. The crew violating the requirements to exhibiting the "OK"/"SOS" signs may be penalized following Art.152 of LASC by decision of the Stewards.

**12.10 If the crew retired from the Rally after the crash or after off-road accident, the crew or team representatives must** inform Chief Scrutineer Mr.Saulius Stanaitis, ph.+370 687 31023 and by his request deliver the car for technical inspection.Violating of this requirement will inflict monetary penalty.

Page 13/17







## 12.11 Service.

12.11.1. During the Rally servicing of rally cars shall be allowed only in the Service parks specified in the Road Book only (art. 48-52 of T-2016). Refueling is allowed only in the refueling zones (art 58.1-58.2 of T-2016).

12.11.2 Service Park B/C/D is open from 17:00, 17-06-2016 (Friday). Entering to Service Zone A allowed from 19:00 17-06-2016 (Friday).

12.11.3 For each crew only one service car without trailer is allowed into the Service zone A and into the Service park B/C/D/E. Special sticker issued by the Organizer must be stick on the service car windscreen. Failure to meet this requirement will be treated a monetary penalty. Reconnaissance cars

and representative cars are not allowed to enter the Service parks. <u>Please leave your trailers in the</u> <u>Organizer's specified location.</u>

12.11.4 <u>It is forbidden to wash</u> the parts and machineries of cars that are using technical oils (engines, gear boxes and similar) in Service parks.

12.11.5 In the place of servicing in the Service parks the waterproof fabric (minimum 4x4 m) must be laid under a rally car. In the refueling zone a container must be laid under the place of the neck for tank filling (to collect spilled fuel). Using pumps for refueling, the ends of the tube must be equiped with safety tapes or valves.

12.11.6 Service places configuration (Appendix 14) will be published <u>www.rallyzemaitija.lt</u>, <u>www.lasf.lt</u>, <u>www.autorally.lv</u> from 16-05-2016 (Monday), 15:00. Places can be booked till 03-06-2016 (Friday) 17:00. After this term organizer will appoint places at their discretion.

12.11.7 Service zone for crews participating in the Test stage (Shakedown) will be specified in the Test Stage Book.

### 12.12 Start procedure in the Special stage.

In all Special Stages start will be executed by means of the electronic timing equipment. When 30 seconds are remaining to start, the crew is handed in the timecard. The electronic clock shows hours, minutes and seconds. When 5 seconds are remaining to start, five red lights will light up every second from one to five. Then these five lights are extinguished, and the crew must start. In case when the crew start is correct, lights green and continues to light for 20 seconds. In case of premature start - display shows "FALSE" and shows the time, the crew brought forward the belonging start. In case if electronic equipment is not installed or it is not functioning, the start procedure shall be carried out following the requirements of art. 37.3 of T-2016. Start marshal must inform the crew in case the start procedure is carried out without electronic equipment.

## 12.14 Regrouping.

During the rally will be five regroupings. After first, third and fourth sections will be consolidations of the start order. After the first Rally day will be regrouping which has change start order according by the results of SS 1/2.

12.15 Test stage (Shakedown) will be carried out 17-06-2016 (Friday) from 10:00 till 12:30.

12.15.1 All drivers who wants to take part in the Test Stage, must it indicated in the electronic Entry Form (Appendix 5), which must reach the Organizer no later than 07-06-2016 (Tuesday), 17:00

12.15.2 Test Stage entry fee is 75 Eur, if payed till 03-06-2016 (Friday) 17:00. After this time payment will be 100 Eur. Test Stage will not be carried out and full Test stage payment will be refunded, if the number of participants will be less ten. In all other cases, except *force majeure* the payment of Test Stage will not be refunded.

Page 14/17







12.15.3 Distance of the stage – 2,95 km. Test Stage for each crew can be driven no more 3 times.

12.15.4 The cars participating in Test stage must be conducted scrutineering. On the cars must be stucked Organizer's issued start numbers and rally and advertising stickers. The car must be fitted with GPS Safety and control device.

12.15. 5 The crews, who suffered a crash or mechanical problems in the Test stage, **must inform** Chief Scrutineer Mr. Saulius Stanaitis, ph. +370 687 31023, and by his request deliver the car for repeated technical inspection.

**12.16** System "Rally 2". The crews, retired during first Rally day after a crash or the car technical failure, are allowed to restart in the second Rally day only after fulfillment these conditions:

12.16.1 Any crew who restarts will not be classified in the final classification and not be eligible for Championship points, except bonus points for classification of each leg of the Rally and last SS.

12.16.2 The crew, intending to re-start the rally, at less than one hour before publishing of the next day start order must inform the Clerk of the Course and submit an application form existing in the Road book, according the "T-2016" 46 art. requirements.

12.16.3 The crews who wish to continue the race after a crash must obtain Chief Scrutineer and Chief doctor permissions.

**12.17** Sports clubs, entrants, their members and other physical or juridical persons who are willing to make hospitality zones for very important persons or other activities during the "Rally Žemaitija – 2016" have to get written organizer's permission.

# XIII. IDENTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIALS

### **13.1 Identification of the Officials (identification colors of the vests)**

Competitors' relations officer:	red with identification note
Stage commanders:	red with identification note
Chief Safety marshals :	red with identification note
Safety marshals :	red/ orange
Chief marshals:	blue with identification note
Marshals:	yellow with identification note
Marshals of radio points	yellow with blue radio point's sign
Scrutineers:	black with identification note

# **XIV. PRIZES, CUPS**

**14.1** 1st - 3rd places winners in Lithuanian RC classifications "Class Personal 1st drivers", "Class personal 2nd drivers " will be awarded as cups and prizes if they are established by the Organizer.

**14.2** The teams placed I - III in Lithuanian RC team classification will be awarded as cups and prizes if they are established by the Organizer.

**14.3** 1st - 3rd places winners in Latvian RC classifications "Class Personal 1st drivers", "Class personal 2nd drivers " will be awarded as cups and prizes if they are established by the Organizer.

**14.4** The teams placed I - III in Latvian RC team classification will be awarded as cups and prizes if they are established by the Organizer.

Page 15/17







**14.5** The crews placed I - III in "Rally Žemaitija - 2016" 2WD and AWD classifications will be awarded by Organizer's cups and / or prizes.

**14.6** Fastest foreign crew will be awarded by Organizer's cups and / or prizes.

**14.7** The award ceremony will take place on 18-06-2016 (Saturday) at 21:00 alongside Kelmė Little Theatre, Laisvės gynėjų square 1, Kelmė.

**14.8** The list of awarding crews will be published in the official notice board at 20:50, 18-06-2016 (Saturday). The crews – prize winners having failed to attend the awarding ceremony will be penalized by 60 Eur fine and will lose their right to the prizes.

# XV. SCRUTINEERING FOLLOWING RALLY FINISH

## **15.1 Scrutineering following finish:**

Place: Company "Girilis", Vytauto Didžiojo str. 128, Kelmė

Date: 18-06-2016 (Saturday)

Time: just after finish

15.2. All protests shall be submitted following the requirements of art.171 -179 of the LASC.

15.2.1 All protests shall be filed together with the deposit of 150 Eur.

15.2.2 In case the protester requires dismantling of parts of the vehicle, the person lodging such a protest must pay the additional deposit as specified in clause 10.4 of Lithuanian RC Regulations. **15.3** Appeals shall be submitted following art.180-191 of the LASC after paying appeal fee, established by LASFCouncil.

# **XVI. PENALTIES**

**16.1**. Look Appendix No. 8.

# **XVII. USEFUL INFORMATION**

**17.1** Foreign participants inquiring on the visa issues may contact LASF +370 37 350106 or e-mail: <a href="mailto:lasf@lasf.lt">lasf@lasf.lt</a>

**17.2** Participants may stay overnight in places specified in Rally Guide 1.

# **APPENDIXES:**

- 1. Itinerary card.
- 2. Reconnaissance schedule.
- 3. Competitors' relations officer and his working plan.
- 4. Positioning Order of Start Numbers and Advertising Texts.
- 5. Competitor's Entry Form.
- 6. Team Entry Form for Lithuanian RC.
- 7. Prohibited roads zones.

Page 16/17







- 8. Table of penalties.
- 9. Declaration of Safety equipment.
- 10. Declaration of used fuel.
- 11. Marking of using bioethanol.
- 12. Instructions of Usage and Mounting of GPS Safety and Tracking Equipment.
- 13. Information to media and accreditation form.
- 14. Scheme of the Service park for places reservation.
- 15. Agreement to take responsibility and instructions about possible risks.

## Approved:

# Prepared and confirmed:

Chairman of LASF Rally Committee Mr. M. Simson

.....

Place of the stamp

Organizer: Kelme ASK President

.

Mr. T. Savickas

LASF General Secretary Ms. R. Burbulienė

.....